Councillors Cooke (Chair), Hare, Scott, Williams, Christophides and Egan

Non-Voting

R Hooper, C Marr, V Paley and N Willmott

Representatives:

Observer: D Heathcote

Also present:

Emma Dagnes – Commercial Director, Alexandra Palace Kerri Farnsworth – Director of Property and Regeneration, Alexandra Palace Nigel Watts – Director of Finance and Resources, Alexandra Palace Duncan Wilson – Chief Executive, Alexandra Palace

Helen Chapman – Clerk, LBH Julie Parker – Director of Corporate Resources, LBH

MINUTE NO.

SUBJECT/DECISION

APBO291.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
	Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Stewart, and apologies for lateness from Val Paley and Nigel Willmott.
APBO292.	URGENT BUSINESS
	There were no items of urgent business.
APBO293.	DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS
	There were no declarations of interest.
APBO294.	QUESTIONS, DEPUTATIONS OR PETITIONS
	There were no questions, deputations or petitions.
APBO295.	MINUTES
	RESOLVED
	That the unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 23 May 2013 and the special meeting of the Board held on 13 June 2013 be approved and signed by the Chair.
APBO296.	REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
	Duncan Wilson, Chief Executive, introduced the report as circulated. The following additional comments and points arose from the discussion with the Board:

Learning Update

• The bid for £67k of HLF funding under the "Our Heritage" programme had been submitted on the 16 July. The bid was to support the exhibition and learning and community programme marking the role of Alexandra Palace as a refugee, internee and prisoner of war camp during WW1.

Archives

 The Board discussed the longstanding policy not to hold an archive at Alexandra Palace. Duncan Wilson reported that the Palace had recently acquired some of the more popular images, as this was more cost-efficient than obtaining copies of material held at Bruce Castle. It was agreed that the best way forward would be to reach an agreement with Bruce Castle regarding access to information held about Alexandra Palace.

Open House

- The television studios would not be open for Open House visitors, due to the potential risks associated with large groups of people accessing these areas.
- The Board emphasised the importance of the Friends of the Theatre and the Alexandra Palace Television Group being involved in producing the script for the Open House event.

Volunteering

• It was suggested that an alternative terminology, such as 'Friends of...' might foster a greater feeling of involvement and inclusivity than volunteers and that this was something that could be considered.

Regeneration

- It was confirmed that there would be a separate Regeneration report to the next meeting of the Board.
- The response to the soft market testing by Knight Frank appeared to be encouraging on the basis of initial feedback, but more would be known once the final report was produced which was anticipated in mid-July. Work around this area would continue over the next few months, and the Board would be advised when it was felt appropriate to test the market for real, which could happen during 2014.
- Following the useful regeneration strategic group workshop held in May 2013, it was envisaged that these workshops would be embedded in the way of working for the regeneration programme, alongside the work of the Regeneration Working Group.
- The Board asked about the 'further work' referred to in paragraph 7.7 of the report on Masterplanning. Duncan Wilson advised that any further design work could only be undertaken once the main HLF design team was in place and that it was important to reach a point where the major design elements of the HLF programme had been determined before addressing other areas. It was emphasised that it was important to keep

- options open with regard to the plans for currently unused spaces, particularly in the South East wing, before approaches were made to commercial investors.
- With regard to specialist areas such as the exhibition in the TV studios, these would be the subject of separate pieces of work with the input of the expert and special interest groups. This work would be undertaken before the main design team were in place and would feed into the main design.
- The Board asked to be kept informed of the further development / design work as this progressed.
- The Board congratulated Duncan and his team for obtaining further grant funding from English Heritage for the SE pavilion works.
- It was suggested that a tour of the site be arranged prior to the start of the next meeting of the Board.

Patrons / fundraising

- Once around 20-30 initial patrons had been identified, it was hoped that a launch event for the programme could be held in the theatre in autumn 2013. Work to identify sponsors for funding would start in 2014.
- The Board welcomed the possibility of using the theatre for an event, but in response to concerns regarding the condition of the interior, it was noted that it would be important to present the event appropriately.
- It was hoped that work to make the theatre safe would be completed by the end of September, but that this was dependent on no further issues being identified during the course of the work.
- Board Members were encouraged to think of suggestions for people to be approached as possible patrons.

Commercial fireworks proposal

- It was reported that a letter of support for the principle of a paid-for fireworks display at the Palace had been received from the police.
- In response to a question from the Board, it was confirmed that the proposed price for tickets (around £6 per adult when bought in advance) was the same as or cheaper than other comparable events in London, and ticket holders would gain access for both the afternoon and evening. From a safety point of view, a ticket-only event would enable greater control of the numbers of people entering the Park.
- It was noted that the Grove would remain open to the public throughout the event; the precise location of the fencing had still to be determined, and a number of suggestions made by the SAC and CC around fencing were being taken into consideration.
- The proposal had been considered by the SAC and CC. The Committees had broadly welcomed the proposal, but had raised some concerns, including around people attempting to gain access to the site without paying. The Committees had also emphasised the need for sensitive signage to address the issue of the closure of entrances, particularly along Newland Road.
- It was confirmed that alcohol would be on sale within the site in plastic containers, but it would not be possible to bring alcohol or glass containers into the events. Bag checks would be carried out upon entry to the site.

 The Board emphasised the need for effective communication around the event

RESOLVED

- i) That the Board note the content of the report, including additional grant funding of £36k from English Heritage.
- ii) That the Board approve the extensions of existing contracts to cover ceiling repairs in the theatre (£20k) and the consolidation of the North Wall (£40k).
- iii) That the Board approve the preparation of a list of possible Patrons of the projects to restore the theatre and TV studios.
- iv) That the Board approve in principle that Alexandra Palace proceed with a reasonably priced ticketed commercial fireworks event in Alexandra Park in November 2013, subject to approval of financial details attached in the restricted papers later in the agenda.

APBO297. REPORT OF THE COMMERCIAL DIRECTOR, APTL

Emma Dagnes, Commercial Director, APTL, introduced the report as circulated. The following additional comments and points arose from the discussion with the Board:

- The Board remarked that the tables at the Bar and Kitchen had made a positive difference.
- Subsequent to the report being written, the Red Bull event had taken place; this had been an excellent, well-delivered event with a positive, family-friendly atmosphere. Events of this nature demonstrated the quality of event that Alexandra Palace was capable of delivering.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

APBO298. REPORT OF THE PARK MANAGER

Mark Evison, Park Manager, introduced the report as circulated. The following additional comments arose from the discussion with the Board:

- The Board asked what the chances of success were likely to be were the Palace to pursue a new Dog Control Order (DCO) to enact the three proposed dog-on-lead areas within the Park, and it was reported that this could not be accurately predicted.
- It was suggested that there may be a number of other parks dissatisfied with the generic Borough-wide DCO, and there may therefore be a benefit in waiting for the Borough to undertake a wider review of DCOs, and seek to implement any changes at this time. Concern was expressed, however, that there was no indicated date as to when such a review might be carried out.

- It was suggested that the Board should write to the Council to formally state its disappointment that the previous proposal had not been taken on board, and indicate that it wished for the previous proposal made in respect of dog-on-lead areas within Alexandra Park to be looked into within the next 12 months, either as part of a wider review or on a standalone basis.
- It was noted that the rose garden was looking very good; Mark Evison advised that this was a legacy project for the 150th anniversary of the park, and that an interpretation sign would be produced later in the year.

RESOLVED

- That the Board note the current situation in relation to Dog Control Orders;
 and
- ii) That the Board write to the Council to indicate that it wished for the previous proposal made in respect of dog-on-lead areas within Alexandra Park to be looked into within the next 12 months, either as part of a wider review or on a stand-alone basis.

APBO299. REPORT OF THE FINANCE AND RESOURCES DIRECTOR - TRUST FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR TWO MONTHS ENDED 30 MAY 2013

Nigel Watts, Finance and Resource Director, Alexandra Palace, introduced the report as set out.

RESOLVED

That the Board note the performance of the Trust for the two months ended 30 May 2013.

APBO300. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the consideration of agenda item 7 as it contains exempt information as defined in Section 100a of the Local Government Act 1972; Para 3 – information relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding the information).

APBO301. REPORT OF THE FINANCE AND RESOURCES DIRECTOR

The recommendations of the report were agreed as amended.

APBO302. | RE-INCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

The Chair invited members of the press and public to re-enter the meeting.

APBO303. REPORT OF THE FINANCE AND RESOURCES DIRECTOR - APPCT ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2013

Nigel Watts, Director of Finance and Resources, Alexandra Palace, introduced the report as set out, and circulated an updated version of the wording for the Annual Review, which had been amended in line with comments provided by the auditors subsequent to the circulation of papers for the meeting. Indicative

artwork for the annual report was also circulated to the Board for information. It was intended that copies of the final document would be provided to potential commercial investors and the document therefore aimed to present a holistic view in its narrative.

- With regard to the amendments tabled, the Board was invited in particular to note the amended description of the support provided by the Borough on page 14 of the Annual Review, 'As it has done in previous years, our trustee provided financial support to enable us to bridge the gap between our income and expenditure, to finance increases in working capital and to meet our loan repayments. It is the Borough's current policy to continue providing this support until such time as it is no longer required'.
- In response to a question from the Board regarding the summary of income and expenditure as set out on page 15 of the report, Nigel Watts advised that funding from the Council was not depicted as income in this chart, as this funding was viewed as a loan rather than a grant.
- The Board congratulated Nigel Watts, Duncan Wilson, Claire Pendleton and everyone who had worked on the annual report, and recognised that this was the clearest set of accounts produced by the Palace to date. The importance of producing a high quality document was particularly recognised at this stage in the regeneration programme.
- In noting the content of the annual report, the Board recognised its duty as
 trustees to do everything it could to ensure that the Trust's financial
 performance was as good as it possibly could be. The report was a public
 benchmark, and it was hoped that the Trust would be able to demonstrate
 the progress it was making year on year.
- The document had been designed for circulation both as a printed copy and as a PDF document. It was report that up to 500 print copies would be produced but the document would largely be circulated electronically and would also be available on the website.
- In response to a question regarding the ongoing deficit, it was reported that this was not a matter that could be addressed in these accounts. It was noted that the Council had given its assurance that it would continue to provide support to the Trust. It was noted that the historic debt matter would need to be addressed separately.
- In response to a question regarding the trading costs as set out in the waterfall chart on page 15 of the Annual Review, it was reported that this figure read £6.65m, or 18%.

RESOLVED

- i) That authority to approve the final accounts for APPCT for the year ended 31 March 2013 be delegated to Councillor Cooke as Chair of the Alexandra Palace and Park Board.
- ii) That the appointment of the auditor for the year ended 31 March 2013 be confirmed and that the Board approve the proposal to retender the audit in the autumn.
- iii) That the letter of representation to be signed on behalf of the Directors of APTL be noted.

APBO304. GOVERNANCE REVIEW AND RESPONSE

Duncan Wilson, Chief Executive, Alexandra Palace, introduced the report as set out. Subsequent to the report having been circulated, Duncan Wilson had met with Nick Walkley, Chief Executive, London Borough of Haringey, and it had been agreed that Duncan Wilson would be accountable to the Board for the delivery of the regeneration programme, with Nick Walkley being accountable to the Cabinet for the role of the Palace's Regeneration Programme within the wider Borough regeneration work. It was noted that the Project Initiation Document was being rewritten, and would be reported back to the next meeting of the Board.

- In response to a question from the Board regarding the involvement of wider stakeholders in the process, it was reported that this had been a piece of audit work around internal procedures and wider involvement was not therefore felt to be appropriate. It was noted that, were there another Gateway Review such as the one undertaken last year, such work would involve the views of the wider stakeholder group.
- Julie Parker, Director of Corporate Resources, London Borough of Haringey, advised that the review had been undertaken in order to provide assurance around the processes that were in place to ensure that the regeneration project delivered its objectives.
- The Board asked about the links between the Regeneration Working Group and the Board and SAC/CC, beyond the twice-yearly strategic workshops. It was reported that there would be more formal regeneration reports to the Board in future, which would have input from the Chair of the Regeneration Working Group, and it was agreed that Duncan Wilson and the Chair of the Board would explore the possibility of providing Board and Committee Members with details on the activity of the Working Group on a more frequent basis.

RESOLVED

That the Board note the progress made by LBH, APPCT and APTL in implementing the recommendations of the report and approve the updated Terms of Reference of the Regeneration Working Group.

APBO305. ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT

There were no new items of unrestricted urgent business.

APBO306. FUTURE MEETINGS

The dates of future meetings of the Board were noted as follows:

29 October 2013 13 February 2014

APBO307. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED that the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the consideration of agenda items 18-22 as they contained exempt information as defined in Section 100a of the Local Government Act 1972; Paragraph 1 –

information relating to any individual, Paragraph 2 – information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual and Paragraph 3 – information relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular individual person (including the authority holding that information).

SUMMARY OF EXEMPT ITEMS

MINUTES

RESOLVED that the restricted minutes of the Alexandra Palace and Park Board held on 23 May 2013 and the special meeting of the Board held on 13 June 2013 be approved as a correct record.

FIREWORKS PROPOSAL

The recommendations of the report were agreed.

REPORT OF THE FINANCE AND RESOURCES DIRECTOR – APTL FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The recommendations of the report were agreed.

REPORT OF THE FINANCE AND RESOURCES DIRECTOR – FINANCE RESOURCES AND AUDIT COMMITTEE UPDATE

The recommendations of the report were agreed as amended.

ANY OTHER EXEMPT BUSINESS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT

There were no new items of exempt urgent business.

The meeting closed at 22:15hrs.